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FISCAL YEAR 2005 BUDGET (C.C. 03-265)

CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(gaveJ). .. Good evening, Paia. Welcome to the Council's
Budget Hearings for the Fiscal Year 2005. This evening, Mr. Molina will be the
one introducing the Members of the Committee as well as calling you up to testify
this evening. When your name is called, please come forward; state your name
on the record; share with us your thoughts, your comments about the budget
proposal. You have three minutes at which time, the staff will inform you of your
three-minute mark, and you will conclude your comments this evening. So right
now, I'd like to introduce Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Good
evening, Paia. Looks like we'll have a very nice, hearty turnout here, and thank
you for taking the time out to share your concerns with the Budget Committee.
Let's begin first with introductions:
over towards my far right, we have
representing the Hana area, we have Councilmember Bob Carroll; sitting next to
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Councilmember Carroll representing West Maui is Jo Anne Johnson--and that's
alright; you can clap; that's okay; thank you; it's much appreciated, believe
me--and over to my left, you heard from the Budget Chairman representing the
island of Lanai, Mr. Riki Hokama; and Council Member representing Wailuku, we
have the Chairman of the County Council Dane Kane; and from Upcountry Maui,
we have Councilmember Charmaine Tavares; and sitting next to Member
Tavares representing the Kahului area, we have Councilmember Joe Pontanilla;
and all the way from the friendly island of Molokai, we have Council member
Danny Mateo. And let me introduce staff to you: we have Tammy Diaz [sic] who
will be our recording secretary all the way down to my left; and sitting next to her
is Carla Nakata from the Budget Committee, one of our analysts; and also in the
audience, we have our Budget Director, the person that's crunching the numbers
for the Administration, we have Mr. Danny Agsalog over here.
As you heard earlier, the Budget Chairman went over the ground rules and again
just to remind you also--Iet me cover something else--is, please turn off all your
cell phones and pagers, so we don't. .. minimize any disruption to our
proceedings tonight. And again you'll have three minutes to testify. When you
hear a staff member announce three minutes in the microphone, that will be your
signal to conclude your testimony, and again state your name for the record as
well as any organization that you may represent.
So with that being said, let us begin. First we have, representing the Paia Youth
and Cultural Center, we have Rachael Ward and several others that will be
coming up to the microphone. Rachael Ward .
. • •BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY• ••

MS. WARD: Hello. Okay. Hi. My name is Rachael Ward and I'm 14 years old and I go
to King K. High School and I am a member of the Paia Youth and Cultural
Center. It used to be fun to me because like we came down and everyone like
had places to go and it was fun and everything. But lately it's been kind of boring
and dull, and that's why I would like your support and to give money to the
PYCC. And like 'cause we need more adventures and places to go and
everything. And like we need more excitement for the kids down there 'cause it's
not that fun anymore. And like and we need like more activities for the older
teens 'cause we have them basically just like stuff for like the little kids to go, like
to the ponds and everything. And it'd like be really nice to have just places to go
for the older teens and no little kids running around and everything. And that's
like basically it, just have a nice safe place to go to.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much ...
MS. WARD: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: ... Rachael.
Hearing none, next speaker, please.

Any questions, Committee Members?

MS. L1MONEZ: My name is Christina Limonez. I'm an 11 year-old sixth grader at
Kalama Intermediate School. I am a happy member of the Paia Youth and
Cultural Center. Lately, there has been no food and some of the computers are
broken. It'd be nice to have some money to fix the broken computers and to
have some money for the cafe, also for a new and nicer games. When I, when
I'm at the Youth Center, I, I feel like I'm at home. At the Youth Center, I can go
swimming and hang out with my friends, but then to keep the, to go to the
activities and keep this Youth Center alive we need money for the broken
computers, games, food and the staff. Hopefully my message is clear. .. so, so
can you please give us some money so the PYCC staff can keep us off the
streets where peoples [sic] do drugs and to keep us safe? Everyone needs a
helping hand. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Our next speaker, please.
MS. L1MONEZ: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Any questions for our testifiers,
Committee Members? Seeing none, thank you very much. Well done, girls.
Next to testify from the Paia Youth and Cultural Center we have Susun White.
MS. WHITE: Good evening. My name is Susun White and I'm the Executive Director of
the Paia Youth and Cultural Center, and first of all, I'd like to thank the County
Council for all their past support of youth centers. I've been an Executive
Director for the youth center for ten years, so I have lots of things to give. I'd also
like it to be noted that I do support Mayor Arakawa's RFP process for Youth
Centers and would like that to continue.
One item that needs to be maybe addressed, if possible if there's more monies,
is that we were all, all of us, the EDs are asking for 1.5 million to be the Youth
Center Budget versus the 1.3, so we're asking for 200,000 more. What that
would do would bring every youth center coming in at 150,000. We will all come
in at a baseline for that and then have another extra 150,000 to divide between
whoever needs the extra funding.
The reason why I'm asking for this is that I was involved in a Committee of
Executive Directors of Youth Centers about six years ago, and through that
process we determined that it would cost, at a baseline figure, 150,000 to run a
youth center safely with the required number of staff and programs to really do
an effective job in the community. That was six or seven years ago. Costs have
risen substantially since then. All of us are facing really increasing costs in
health insurance, commercial liability insurance, and our field costs have risen.
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Plus for long-term employees at youth centers we also deserve some pay raises.
So if it would be at all possible, I would hope that the County Council and the
Mayor could make an adjustment if not for this year but the following year, and
that's alii have to say. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Susun.
Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify we've
representing the Boys and Girls Club of Maui: Joe
Curtis, Max Dosland, Chynna Woodruff and Mariah
Amber Delgado.

Questions for the testifier?
got a group of individuals
Cosner, Colin Hanlon, Lynn
Fulcher. .. to be followed by

MR. COSNER: Aloha and good evening. My name is Joe Cosner and I am the Haiku
Unit Director for the Boys and Girls Club of MauL I've been a part of Haiku for
the last eight years now and I've seen just substantial growth over the years.
And I would like to thank all of you for supporting our Youth Centers and Boys
and Girls Clubs of MauL We were once a Youth Center and now we are a Boys
and Girls Club, so I would like to thank for all the past support and your continued
support towards our programs.
Just a few little numbers before I pass it on to our kids is our total membership is
at 182 kids right now; and we're doing a daily average of 65 kids a day; and we
do see numbers of 80 to 90 kids a day, at least twice a week. And we definitely
will pass our total membership of 206 last year, but as of right now--like what I
said earlier--we're at, we're at 182 at about 65 kids a day. And now I'll let my
kids do some testimony.
MR. DOSLAND: Hi. My name is Max and I'm a proud member of the Boys and Girls
Club of Maui in Haiku. I go to the club because I like the activities that are
available for me to do such as computers, foosbal\, pool and all kinds of board
games. But what's most important to me are the outdoor activities like flag
football. Flag football is one of my favorite sports and being able to play it every
day is like a dream come true. And now there's a league in which we can
compete against the other clubs in the island. Oh, yeah. And another, another
thing that is important to me is the freedom. I like that I have a choice to do what
I want to do at the Club. I don't like being forced to doing things like, like school
does. Anyway, I would like to thank you, thank you all for your continued support
of the Boys and Girls Club.
MS. FULCHER: Okay. That's good.
?: ... (inaudible) ...
MS. FULCHER: Hello. My name is Mariah and I have been going to the Boys and Girls
Club of Haiku, Maui for three years now. I go to the club because the staff is so
wonderful and because of my friends. I like to go there after school to play with

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 30, 2004 (Paia)

my friends. There is so much we are able to do like play cards and board games
and sports that happen every day. I really enjoy going out and playing flag
football with Joe and Makana(?). It gives me a chance to play with my friends
outside. I also like it when we have Girls Club with Auntie Joy. It is when the
girls can get together and have fun and play board games like bingo. We also
have games like water balloon toss and other things. Joy also does arts and
crafts with us. This is when we are able to make presents like picture frames and
candy flowers to give to our families. Makana(?) also does a drug-free group
called Smart Moves to help us understand the dangers of drugs and alcohol. Mia
also works at the club. She is playing, plays cards and board games with us. I
like to play on the computers with my friends, too. The computers teach me to
be cautious on the internet. I would like to thank the-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. FULCHER: --staff for being, I would like to thank the staff for being so nice and
fun. I would like to thank all of you, too, for supporting the Boys and Girls Club of
Maui and making all this possible.
MS. WOODRUFF: Hi. My name is Chynna and I'm a grateful member of the Boys and
Girls Club of Maui, Haiku. I like it there because when I have a bad day at
school, the club and the staff make everything feel like it'll be okay. I also enjoy
the support that is given to me everyday. 'myself am a very active person. If I'm
not at school, soccer practice or volleyball, I'm either at the Boys and Girls Club
or at home. One thing about being active is that you always have to be right on
homework. That is no problem for me when you're with Auntie Joy and Power
Hour. Power Hour helps me get all my homework done. It also helps me when
I'm completely packed with homework. The only problem is that sometimes 1'1\
show up a little late to Power Hour and there will be no chairs available. I wish
that someone could donate a bunch-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. WOODRUFF: --of chairs for our rec room. The staff are like my second family and
the club is like my second home. I wish that. .. 1 would just like to say that I am
so thankful for all of your funding for the Boys and Girls Club of Maui for Haiku for
kids like me to hang out. This is where the aloha is.
MS. CURTIS: Hi. Good evening. My name's Lynn Curtis and I'm speaking tonight, to
you tonight as the Vice President of the Governing Board of the Boys and Girls
Club of Maui. I did speak in Kula and I wanted to be here tonight to support the
Haiku Club. That's my home community. I would just like to encourage you to
think in terms of growth and expansion when you consider the budget for the
Boys and Girls Club. I've been involved with the Boys and Girls Club--well, with
the Haiku club--since it was a Youth Center under the County, and back then
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they did a good job. They did a very good job; however, since they've become
part of a national organization I, I have seen a quantum leap in the vision, in the
level of professionalism and the access to resources that really never could have
been realized if we'd stayed local. So it was a good thing many years ago when
Alice Lee brought all the non-profits together and said you better partner up
because times are changing. So I think we've done a pretty good job of that.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Okay.
Thank you very much.
Members ... sorry, Colin, I'm sorry. I forgot about you. Go ahead.

Committee

MR. HANLON: I'll try not to take all three, three of my minutes here. I came up and
testified in Kula; I tried to get out to Lahaina; the roads were blocked. I am going
to follow you around to every stop I can. I'm just a groupie. Real, real quickly, I
think you know my concerns about the RFP process as I told you in Kula. I am
very supportive of the change but if the, if the cost of doing business continues to
rise--I think Susun White put it quite eloquently when she talked about the fact
that many, six years ago they came up with the study. They say the baseline just
to open the doors and keep it open and monitor was 150. The cost of
insurance--I know personally--is going up at least 15 percent every year now.
That's what it went up last year, that's what my broker told me to put it up this
year. The cost of doing business is going up, so we'll all have to find more
money to do the same services, and that's really not our goal.
Our goal is to expand, reach more kids, you know, reach out and, and, and, and
continue our reach into the community and get more kids to come to the club and
get out there to do more. So again like Susun said, the real solution to this
problem is to raise it to 1.5 million, and that creates a baseline of 150. You gOtta
understand when we started, when I started working at the Upcountry Youth
Center many years ago--I think '95--we were about 98 percent off the County
Budget. Right now, this current year that we're in, we're 54 percent off the
County Budget. We've done more to diversify our budget than ... well, I don't
know about everybody else, but I know we've done quite a bit of work. I don't
want to qualify it that way.
We've done quite a, quite a bit of work this year. We've started our first annual
campaign. The Board of Directors with Lynn, who's our Board, our Board Chair
for the annual campaign, we've, we've started that, what, we'll be done in about a
month. We've had our first--I'm sorry I'm taking way more time--we've done our
first special event out in Wailea, and we've raised over $50,000 and we're
continuing to look for more funding sources, diversify our funds. But again the
County is really the meat and potatoes of what we do for staffing. Anything cut in
there cuts staffing. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
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MR. HANLON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Colin. For the record, can you state your
name and organization, Colin, for the record?
MR. HANLON: Boys and Girls Club of MauL I'm the Executive Director.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Committee Members, any questions for the
Boys and Girls Club representatives? Seeing none, thank you very much. Next
to testify we'll have Amber Delgado to be followed by Pema Gilman.
MS. DELGADO: Good evening. My name is Amber Delgado. I represent Youth with a
Mission MauL I'm here to testify on behalf of the Maui Community Food Bank. If
you're unfamiliar with Youth with a Mission, we're based here in Paia. What we
do is we're ... our goal is to enable young people to be able to preach the good
news around the world and just to do community service and enrich their lives in
the world, and what they do here is lectures and things like that.
The Food Bank has been a staple for us; they've been so generous to us; they've
been helping us with our budget. If they weren't a part of giving to us, we
wouldn't be able to run at an affordable rate to the students. In fact, it would be a
dramatic increase, which we wouldn't be able to afford. We also use the Food
Bank to run a pantry out of the little blue chapel that's up here on the road.
Without the Food Bank this pantry wouldn't run and we wouldn't be feeding
anyone in Paia. I just want to encourage everyone to just notice how much the
Food Bank has improved over the last couple of years. I know every time I work
with them they're so well organized, and I believe that the budget that you have
increased over the last couple of years has been excellent. And I would just like
to propose that you, if not keep it the same, then increase it because we would
just, are so thankful for them, and I'm sure the entire community of Maui is just
really thankful for what a great job that they're doing. I just appreciate your
consideration and your time. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Amber. Questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify we have Pema Gilman to be followed by
Loren Lapow.
MS. GILMAN: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Pema Gilman and I'm a
victim advocate at Women Helping Women. We run an island-wide community
response to domestic violence project. I'm here to ask the Council to add a line
item of $140,000 to the current County Budget Fiscal Year 2005 that's up for
consideration for Women Helping Women. I ask this in the name of my clients,
victims of domestic violence who are not comfortable coming forward themselves
in public. These women and children have personally shared with me their
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sense of desperation and aloneness when faced with having to leave their
homes because of abuse. They also share their gratitude at having found
Women Helping Women shelter and the help of the staff in connecting them to
the social, legal and financial services that they need to put their lives back in
order. They also share their gratitude for the support they feel when attending
our women's groups and for the recovery from trauma that they see their children
experience because of our children's program. And when they're able to leave
the shelter, they share their gratitude for the assistance they often receive getting
further education to upgrade their skills, locating donations of furniture, dishes,
sheets, towels, food boxes and even rental deposits for their new homes.
One client of mine, a woman with six small children was homeless for almost
three months because landlords didn't want her children and feared that her
abuser might show up at the home. Not to mention the fact that she had
employment but she couldn't save enough for the very large deposits that those
landlords, who were willing to consider to rent to her, were asking. And she
couldn't save for those deposits because she had to feed her children; she had to
pay a babysitter while she went to work; and she was paying extremely large
amounts of money for temporary condo rentals that changed every couple of
weeks. She told me when I finally received her as a client that she had been
near to giving up and returning to her abuser of 14 years, her very lethal abuser
of 14 years. She said, at least he pays the rent. I was so grateful for the
opportunity to help this woman and get her and her six children into a home and
stabilized. What my clients tell me over and over and over is, thank you so
much, I didn't think anybody cared. And the other comment that I hear a lot is, if I
had known there was help like this ...
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. GILMAN: ... 1 would have left sooner. Women Helping Women is the only
domestic violence program on Maui providing this type of comprehensive service
to your sisters, your aunties, your granddaughters and your moms. Your support
is not only needed but required to keep this kind of program going. So I'm going
to thank you in advance for adding a line item of $140,000 to the County Budget
2005 for Women Helping Women. Thank you so much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Gilman. Committee Members,
any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Prior to having our next
testifier come up, Loren Lapow, the ... on behalf of Budget Chairman Hokama,
we'd like to acknowledge the presence of Parks Director, Mr. Glenn Correa. I
saw him walk in the room. He's somewhere back there. There he is. Okay.
Next to testify Loren Lapow followed by Kahu Vince Colleado.
MR. LAPOW: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen. My name's Loren Lapow. I'm with
the program called the Maui Hero Project. We are an after-school program that
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works with kids and we need $60,000 to bridge us to the next year. We've been
really good at sustaining ourselves with Federal money, with State money, with
foundation money. We worked tirelessly and built this program out of nothing.
Right now, we've serviced over 150 kids in three years, the kids that don't fit in
the normal box: they don't fit on the basketball team; they don't really handle
classrooms that well. People got all kinds of names for these kids; we got a
name for them, too; we call them heroes because that's what they prove
themselves to be in our program.
We start after school with them; we run this intensive eight-week journey. They
follow the legend and myths of the Hawaiian demi-god Maui. They relate to his
antics, to his trickster nature and in the end, they come to see what Maui saw,
how to find his place in the community and in the end, they come back. They
came back so much the first couple years we couldn't make them go away even
if we wanted to. I remember in the lao Valley working down there, they would
ride their bikes up to meet up with us. I said, no, no, you guys graduated
already; we got a new group. No, no, Loren, we'll work. What do you want us to
do? I was like, you guys, come on, alright, you see that stream right there, make
it go that way. Just leave me alone for a while. And I came back and the stream
went over there. I said, ah, see that big pile of rocks, just move them or
something and they built loi. And what I started to find out was that this demi-god
and his spirit was guiding us on this journey and it's a real grass roots journey.
We have no community center; we have no house; we have our leaking
15 passenger vans and these kids are showing up, 3,000 hours of community
service work, planted almost everyone of the loi in lao Valley all over this island.
They just keep coming back. These are the kids that--what?--they don't fit in the
Yeah.
They're
classroom; they're in trouble in the principal's office.
misunderstood, that's what it is.
We found a place for these kids and they're forming a culture. They sport their
shirts and they represent themselves through their artwork, their poetry, their
music, their graduation dances and ceremonies. These are kids who have
committed themselves to us and to each other. And we've committed ourselves
to them. We start work at 6:00 a.m.; we end work at 9:00 p.m.. Jose knows.
You know, anytime that phone rings we field that call because we're rootsie(?)
like that. That's all we got now is each other and pretty soon we're gonna be that
model program. There's stories of heroes all over the country. The whole
country is trying to find out what that is again, but we live on the island named
after the hero, and I think we're gonna be that national model. We've already
taken steps through the Department of Health, Alcohol and Drug Abuse-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. LAPOW: --the Federal Department of Education to make the steps we need to
make to take our science-based program, the one that has demonstrated results
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in improving academic periormance, improving attendance and decreasing
anti-social behaviors and taking it to the model status for replication. We've done
it before; we can do it again. We need your help to cover one staff position to
serve another 100 kids next year, 10,000 hours of service. We can do it but only
with your help. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright. Thank you, Mr. Lapow. Committee Members,
questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify is Kahu Vince
Colleado and he's representing Na Kanaka Maoli 0 Hawaii Ne to be followed by
Toby Neal of the Maui Hero Project.
MR. COLLEADO: Aloha kakou (Spoke in Hawaiian) . .. up in lao Valley. We also curate
that project up in the State parks, lao Valley State parks and Malama Aina have
been for the past five years at Kepaniwai, the Hawaiian gardens down there. I,
as a leader, also have been working with the Maui Hero Project and am fond of
all of these different groups as represented here. I've been faith-based, also
understand the idea that faith without the works is dead, poho, not..., nothing
going happen. So we can be all spiritual about everything but we still need to do
the natural.
Just to share a short story, a few months ago we, a bunch of kahus came to this
island and we did a declaration into the realm of the spirit. We asked akua go
come heal the land and we spoke life into the spirit, and unbeknownst to us we
didn't know how, what kind of impact was made. A week later I was in ... , invited
to come up to
up in Ulupalakua Ranch to ... there's two on Kahoolawe,
one up in Ulupalakua that brings the rain from the forest to Kahoolawe. And in
my spirit there was a check, so I didn't go, I went to Kahoolawe instead on the
direction of akua, and when I got there I heard the, the manao ... (Spoke in
Hawaiian). .. that which descended from above was shared, the ike was shared
from those that were of that PKO on Kahoolawe. And they said that Maui is a, is
the child--this is in our moolelo and in our stories--Maui is, is the woman, the
hapai women, if you take aerial shot; Molokini is the umbilical cord; and
Kahoolawe is the child.
I was brought, it was brought to my attention, akua gave me a word on
Kahoolawe. He said these words, as the child goes so goes the generation,
letting me know that I need to let everybody else know that we have an obligation
to the generation. And what a sad thing it'll be because it's a lack of funds that
projects like what, what is being represented here cannot go forward because of
the money. So this is in your hands and I would ask that. .. we understand the
idea that we know where we came from; we know where things are at right now.
In order to navigate the future we gotta know the past, know where we stay now.
Then we can know how to navigate the future, and so as the child goes so goes
the generation. What we did on that prophetic day was speak life to the child and
we're not talking just to the island. I'm talking beyond the island and into the
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generations from the mama to the child. And only with the help of akua can this
really become a reality, but you know like I say one more time, faith without that
works is dead.
So with all of the groups as represented here and specifically with the Maui Hero
Project of which, which I have been working very closely with, and what an
awesome thing. Sometime you can ... some people don't relate to just sit down
on the table and counsel, but you go take 'em up the mountain, you make 'em
aloha aina, malama aina; go feel the aina; teach about the plants. Amazing how
akua put all these classroom pictures already in place that help teach the child
and give them graphic pictures. So these guys need all of, all of the fundings
that they can get, all of the support that they can get, and with your help, I know
that this can become one reality. We are now presently... they have helped us
over the years to get that project up in lao Valley. We had created a scale model
of an ahupuaa and on, on a monthly basis for the past four years we would have
public luaus free for the, for the public-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. COLLEADO: --open to the public. We no advertise nothing, but the idea is to
perpetuate the Hawaiian culture, the righteousness of the Hawaiian culture with a
touch of aloha, from ... (Spoke in Hawaiian) . . .from ... (Spoke in Hawaiian) . .. and
just on a side note, everybody here you welcome to tune in on 900 AM KNUI
every Sunday evening from 6:00 to 6:45. My emphasis is to bring healing to the
people, healing to the land. We need to hear--faith comes by hearing, not having
heard, we keep hearing--and let akua teach us and we need to be doers of that,
no just hear but apply 'em and then the bugga work for us. We know the soap
work for us but until we grab 'em, apply 'em then it works. Mahalo (Spoke in
Hawaiian). A hui hou.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mahalo, kahu. Thank you. Questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify representing the Maui Hero Project we
have Toby Neal to be followed by Linda Plauche. Please forgive me. I've
mispronounced the name, Linda. Go ahead.
MS. NEAL: Well, he's a tough, tough act to follow. My name is Toby Neal and I'm a
counselor at Kalama Intermediate School. I'm speaking on behalf of the Maui
Hero Project because I've known Loren since the idea of the project was just a
gleam in his eye and a grant that he was writing. I've seen the program grow
and I've been able, in a position to refer kids to the program. I can endorse it
whole-heartedly that every student that's gone through that program has
benefited. We've seen improvements in their grades, improvements in their
attendance and certainly improvements in their behavior on campus. And they're
proud to be Hero graduates and they're even proud to be called to the
responsibility of being a Hero graduate. So in that sense we see lasting gains
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from this program. Once they've graduated they can become an alii and they
continue to give back to their community in a .. .it's a little bit non-traditional and
yet traditional in the, in the Hawaiian way. So even for those of us who are
grafted in to the, the islands of Hawaii, we can still participate. And I just want to
thank you for your consideration of a line item and a permanent place for the
Hero Project in MauL Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Neal. Questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify we'll have Linda Plauche to be followed
by Kekoa Plauche.
MS. PLAUCHE: Hi. Good evening. My name is Linda Plauche.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Plauche.
MS. PLAUCHE: That's okay. . .. (inaudible). .. I'm the proud and grateful parent of a
Maui Hero alii, Kekoa Plauche. The Maui Hero Project aids in building in our
youth the attitude that focuses upon each individual's importance, worth and
talent. This creates a strong team who works together to improve themselves
and our precious public places as well as the community.
My personal experience with the Maui Hero Project began when my son Kekoa
was recommended to Loren by his counselor at Kalama Intermediate School.
Kekoa has dyslexia, ADHD, and has social disabilities. Through the Maui Hero
Project he's been able to participate in the eight-week cycle. The focus was
always upon a positive, interactive and challenging concept of teamwork, trust
and community involvement. He was able to shift his attention, not so much on
himself and his disabilities, but to helping others and in doing so recognized his
abilities. Okay. He has been a mentor helping new Maui Heroes gain
self-confidence through the activities that foster civic-minded individuals as they
respect and care for the land. He is now an alii in the Maui Hero's Project and
has great pride when he tells people about the program.
There are few activities for youths in this age group to enjoy on the island. They
are underage to be able to drive and they're unable to avail themselves of the
beach, movies, and shopping unless they're close by. All too often they fall prey
to activities that are destructive instead of constructive. This is especially true of
youths who are at greater risk. Those may include adolescents who come from
fragmented homes. They may have learning or social disabilities. These youths
need positive structure in their lives. They're the ones who need to feel that they
have value and that they can make a difference. It's imperative that they be
involved in a life-affirming, positive activity structured by someone like Loren. He
has the vision, the patience ...the patience and the skills needed to intercede on
behalf of trouble youths at a time in their lives when it has a chance to make a
difference.
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Loren and his staff skillfully instill in the children that go through the program to
have love and respect for themselves. He does this through activities that teach
them to love and respect the history of Maui, their island home. They're taught to
love, respect, plan and care for their community. The lessons that they learn do
not last a season, but it lasts their entire lifetime. If we wish to build a strong
civic-minded community-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. PLAUCHE: --shouldn't it begin with our youth? Not only should the Maui Hero
Project continue for the sake of our youth and to outreach to other youths, it must
continue for the sake of our community.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. PLAUCHE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. And my apologies for the mispronunciation. Next we
have Kekoa Plauche to be followed by Rae Corpuz.
MR. PLAUCHE: Hi. My name is Kekoa Plauche. When I started going to the Maui
Hero Project about two years ago, I started with the eight-week program and we
had two adventures a week. Each week we learned a story about the demi-god
Maui and the adventures that we had afterwards were similar to the adventures
that the demi-god had. The adventures and stories improved my life because if I
had not been going to the Maui Heroes, I would not have been able to learn
those things. The Maui Heroes taught me, taught me that with a team we can,
we were able to do bigger things than if we tried to do something alone. They
taught me that together we can care for the land and as a community we can
care ... or and as a community we can care for each other. That makes me feel
more powerful than if I was trying to do things by myself. The experience taught
me to show respect for the land and respect for the other members of our
community. I am very proud to be a Maui Hero alii member and thank you for
listening.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay_ Thank you, Kekoa. Questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. We have Rae Corpuz representing the Maui Hero
Project to be followed by Jud Cunningham.
MS. CORPUZ: Hi. Good evening, Mike. My daughter is in the Maui Hero Project. The
Maui Hero Project has developed our daughter Rayna(?) Corpuz in many ways,
created positive direction and environment; developmental and physical
challenges; built courage and self-esteem; set positive directions and good
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foundation for her goals in life; resolved conflicts and resolutions in school and
family environment; learned responsibility and respect towards authority and
adult mentors; challenged personal limits and developed social skills in school
and through adulthood. A hero, and a heroine, she and all participants can
shape their lives if funding is continued for this program. I'd like to acknowledge
the following mentors: Loren Lapow, Jose Antomenty(?)--sorry, Jose--Melissa
Stewart(?), Stephanie Pekyak(?) for their endless time, support and effort in
helping all youths in the Maui Hero Project.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Seeing
no questions, next we have Jud Cunningham representing Aloha House, Inc. to
be followed by Cindy Cline.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Aloha House is very proud to be associated with the Maui Hero
Project, and I'm moved, very deeply moved as I hope you are by the comments
that have been made about the project. I want to talk to you about something
else very briefly. In looking at the budget and in previous correspondence I've
received, you know, I understand that the, the Community Partnerships Grant
Program is being--at the request from the Mayor's office--is $1.5 million. Now
that's up from the 1.1 million that the Council appropriated this current year, but
it's down from the 1.8 or 1.9 that had been appropriated in previous years. The
fact that those funds were drastically reduced this past year caused the Grants
Review Committee to set caps on the amounts that agencies would receive, and
while Aloha House and our affiliate Malama Family Recovery Center were
ranked very high in the process, the rating process, like in the top five, when we
would have gotten and did get the top cap we lost about $70,000. Now added to
all the additional costs that we've had this year--the rising cost of work comp, for
example, it doubled another 35,000--we nearly ended up in a deficit situation this
year and had to actually make cuts in personnel in order to make it. So what I'm
here to do is to encourage you to not only appropriate the money that's being
requested for CPG but also to increase it to previous levels to the '02 level, which
I believe was around 1.8 or 1.9 million. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Cunningham. Any questions for
the testifier? Seeing none ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is for all of those that have concerns about the non-profits.
can tell you that last year as a Council we gave pretty much the same amount of
total dollars for social services.
?: More.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We gave more? Thank you for that. We gave a little bit more than
the previous year for the total social service program and non-profits. What did
occur was that the Administration--and we support it--gave more specific line
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item appropriations which lessened the total pot of the grant program. So, just so
that you, you know, I just wanted to get that clear, the total amount of dollars has
not decreased for social services, and I just wanted to get that clear because
there's a perception in the community that we gave less funding than the
previous year, and that's not accurate at all. Okay. So I just wanted to share
that with all of you this evening and let you know that your Members care a lot
about each and every one of you and your children.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Member Hokama.
Next to testify
representing Women Helping Women we have Cindy Cline to be followed by
Stacey Moniz. And I would like to again remind you that prior to starting your
testimony please state your name and whatever organization you're
representing.
MS. CLINE: Good evening. I'm Cindy Cline. I am the Deputy Director for Women
Helping Women and I'm in charge of shelter operations. I saw you all last night
in Lanai and I wanted to let you know that I'm not stalking you. But I am
seriously here to ask you to consider our request for a line item of $140,000. In
part, the mission of Women Helping Women is to end domestic violence in our
community. We offer safety, support and empowerment for women and children,
victims of domestic violence. For 27 years--I repeat, 27 years--Women Helping
Women has worked towards ending domestic violence on Maui and Lanai. We
do so one woman at a time.
Statistics show that a woman will leave her abusive partner nine times before she
permanently leaves him. Every time she leaves, she wants the violence to stop.
It doesn't matter if it's the first time, it doesn't matter if it's the fifth time, every
time she wants it to stop. When a woman decides to leave her abusive
relationship and come to the shelter, she is in fear of further abuse to
themselves, for themselves, their children or even both. Often women who
repeatedly come to the shelter, come back to the shelter, they stay for longer
periods of time. So that's an opportunity for us to provide more education; we
provide her with more knowledge of community resources so she can start
building and seeing, okay, you know, there is a light, there is a way. Every time
she comes, we treat it like it was the first time, no judgment or anything because
it's hard, really, really hard. Okay, sorry.
Often a woman coming in believes that they are alone and this is, this is, I see
this everyday, you know, women who's been at the shelter for, for a little while
and when they see a woman, a new woman comes in, yeah, the new woman will
come in thinking, oh my god, you know, I'm embarrassed, you know, I'm alone,
nobody knows that I've been going through this. Then she sees other women.
These women who have been here for a little longer will embrace her, will
support her. You know, then we have women helping women. Women helping
women.
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I can't stress enough the importance of Women Helping Women shelters in our
community. I wish we had one on Lanai. The shelter provides essential service
that saves and changes lives. It's very serious. Since October of 2003, since
last October, we have been maxed: every, every bed, every crib, every playpen,
every sofa has been filled. You know, last night I talked about the nine gallons of
milk and the vienna sausage. So please, I'm asking you, please make an
informed decision when considering the line item for our request for a line item.
You know, think about really the seriousness of domestic violence and how it
affects our community, you know, because last night I talked about no
boundaries. It is no boundaries because employers are affected, families are
affected, extended families. You know, it doesn't end. So please, thank you.
Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Cindy. Questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, mahalo. And it's always a pleasure seeing you, Cindy.
Next representing Women Helping Women we have Stacey Moniz to be followed
by Bill Tavares.
MS. MONIZ: Hi. I'm Stacey Moniz. I'm the Executive Director for Women Help~ng
Women and I am stalking you. I've been at every County Budget Hearing except
Molokai. I don't think I'm going to make it to Hana 'cause I got my United Way
grant that's due. But I'll see you in Kihei and in Wailuku ... and I saw you on
Lanai last night. It was beautiful.
Anyway, at one of the hearings--and I can't remember which; I think it was Kula--I
had mentioned that we all play the role of advocate from our children's advocates
to our deputy director to myself. Our job is to advocate and tonight one of our
case manager advocates worked really closely with a woman who was getting
her courage up to come and testify on her own behalf. And she sat here; she
signed up to testify; we advocated; we brought her down and as the testifying
began, it scared her and she decided not to. And I had mentioned that because
then our job is to advocate and support her in that decision. Because it is very
hard and it's very scary and it's extremely scary to get up here and say, oh, I'm
Stacey and I'm a client of Women Helping Women. If there's a huge judgment
stigma attached to battered women and our job is to, as advocates, is to educate
and to take that shame away for women and to make it okay for them to step
forward. I told her that we still have Kihei and Wailuku and maybe she'll rebuild
her courage, as we advocate for her, to do that.
Okay. I just wanted to say that, that also kind of amplifies the brave step that our
woman last night on Lanai and her two children we had--for those that weren't
there on Lanai--we had an eight-year old and a ten-year old girl testify and talk
about their own experiences of being victims of domestic violence and of their
experience at Women Helping Women shelter. So I just wanted to make a note
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of that because I think they are so brave, and what the ten year old didn't
mention, which I wish she had, is that she is the president of her class in school.
I'm so proud, anyway, like she's my own kid. So I'm here asking for $140,000
line item and I want to ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... and overwhelmingly everyone that
I met and talked to that are from--it didn't matter what job they held from
teachers, and school counselors, and police officers and other social service
providers--everyone mentioned and some of them testified last night to the
incredible work that Beverly is doing, our half-time staff member. And they had
speak to the good quality of the work she's doing and how important her work is
on Lanai. I met with someone who made a very generous donation of a Ford
Explorer to Women Helping Women for one of our clients. He's a homeowner
there and, and he was saying how important it is to do this. They've done a, a
group of women did a survey there and said that one of the top-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. MONIZ: --needs is a shelter on Lanai, and so I am going to work for that as well.
But I just wanted to kind of mention that. It's so, she works, she gets paid
half-time for Women Helping Women, she's working full-time plus nights,
weekends. The police bring women to her house on the weekends; they call her
at home. It's such a small community there and she's the only person there.
When we were there, we were there to offer her technical support, professional
support and just that other ear that understands what she's dealing with
everyday. So we need her at full-time and I appreciate again your patience
seeing me at all of these hearings and I'll see you Thursday in Kihei. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Stacey. Questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify representing COMET we have
Bill Tavares to be followed by Karen Jeffery.
MR. TAVARES: Good evening. I am Bill Tavares, Chairman of COMET, the
Committee for More Equitable Taxation. Have you seen on medieval manor
houses scattered along the north shore surrounded by the humble abodes of the
local serfs? Grotesque, enormous, toad-like homes squatting on relatively small
lots, TOADS, we call them, acronym for totally objectionable and destructive to
homeowners. Let me read this listing of properties for sale in the Kuau, Paia,
Sprecklesville area: 1,595,000, 1,999,000, 4,900,000 and here's the kiiler,
16,500,000 in Sprecklesville.
A resident of Kuau told me just two days ago when we attended a funeral that
she was shocked and frightened when she first received her assessment card
recently. She said she will have to remove her child from a local parochial school
because of the heavy tax burden now placed on her. She told me she didn't
know what to do and I told her contact Members of the Council immediately.
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In discussing the proposed budget, this Council and this Administration must
consider the terrifying plight of homeowners not only on the north shore but
throughout Maui County as they face staggering increases in their assessments
and potentially their taxes. Just listen to three examples, horrific examples of a
property tax system run amuck. My neighbor in Kuau, '04 total assessment,
2004 total assessment: 2,293,600; five ... , 2005 assessment: 2,765,600,
20V2 percent increase of $471,000 increase in assessment. Another one,
Kihei. ..Wailuku Heights--and this is staggering--'04: 295,700; '05: 467,700, a
58 percent increase. Incidentally on Kauai, the average increase in assessed
valuation is 29 percent. COMET has been trying since December the 2nd to have
a meeting with the Finance Director to try to find a better system of property
taxation for Maui County. But to date all we've heard is, we're too busy; we can't
do it now, but we can't do it until after April 8th . COMET feels that this County, if
it really-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. TAVARES: --looks, will find more tax revenue from sources other than long-time
homeowners, if ... (pause, due to technical problems) . .. on this subject. You can
hear me? Good. I'm sorry my back is turned toward you. If COMET fails to
secure its goals including a cap, a cap on assessments by December of this
year, 2004, we may attempt to secure the nearly 16,000 signatures needed to
put our tax reform proposal on the ballot like Kauai is presently doing, even if we
have to pay people to secure those signatures, and I know that we can get the
money. Now in conclusion--oh boy, wish we had a speaker stand here, but that's
alright--COMET's objective is fair and equitable taxation. We are prepared to
continue indefinitely in pursuit of our goals. I've been at it 16 years already. As
the American colonist said more than 200 years ago, chafing under British rule
and cruel taxation-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. TAVARES: --it's time to load the muskets. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Tavares. Questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify we have Karen Jeffery to be followed by
Michael Jensen.
MS. JEFFERY: Aloha. I'm a senior volunteer with Giving Back, the Brain Gym
intergenerational mentoring program, and I'm here today to tell you a little bit
about this wonderful program and what it means to the seniors and the children
that are involved in it and their communities as well. I just joined the program this
last year and it's grown almost double this year, and we have ... there are a lot of
plans to grow it even more in the future, because other communities are
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requesting the services now that we've been bringing to the four schools and the
Maui Farm and now we're in the homeless shelter as well.
For those of you that aren't familiar with the program, it, we put together, we train
seniors and then they go into the schools and to the other facilities and work with
children one-on-one who have special needs either because of their hyperactivity
or family situations, a lot of learning-disability children we're working with. We
have testing in now for the last two years that supports incredible results from the
work and increased learning skills, social skills, lessened hyperactivity, etcetera.
I've submitted a letter to each of you basically outlining my specific experience
with Kula Elementary and the three children I was privileged to work with this
year. So I just want to encourage you--because the community is driving the
growth of this program--to fund it for another year or two so that we can keep
going for the benefit of the kupunas, the keikis and for Maui County communities.
Thank you again.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Next to testify we have Michael Jensen to be followed by Alex
Michailidis. Michael Jensen? Okay. We'll put Michael aside for a moment. Alex
Michailidis to be followed by Julia Rodrigues.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Aloha, Budget and County, Budget and Finance Committee
Members. My name is Alex Michailidis and I spoke with you last week in Kula.
I'm with the East Maui Watershed Partnership Project and I, at that time, thanked
you for last year's funding and the year before's funding and also requested your
support of the Mayor's allocation of $200,000 in this year's budget for all of Maui
County's watershed partnerships: East Maui, West Maui, East Molokai and
Lanai. Three minutes of testimony to elaborate the need for funding the
protection of this resource is impossible and that's why I'm here before you night.
Hopefully, I'm not going to need nine minutes; otherwise, I'll see you tomorrow
night in Hana.
Our watersheds provide goods and services in the billions of dollars to our
island's economy. Damage to this natural system will affect our watershed's
ability to generate and store fresh water, sustain biological diversity, spiritually
drive our island's native culture and provide aesthetic beauty in the eyes of
residents and visitors alike. Generating the fiscal resources to restore any of
these services would cripple our County's economy and forever change our
current and future quality of life.
As I mentioned last week, we have made great progress in protecting East
In the past two years,
Maui's and native-Hawaiian forested watershed.
partnership staff have grown from one to eight personnel, constructing fences in
the remote mauka forests of East Maui and controlling populations of feral
animals and the proliferation of invasive plant species above our fence lines. Our
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public relations associate has developed a website aimed at our island's keiki
and has also given numerous presentations at schools explaining the importance
of a healthy watershed and what happens when such a resource is damaged. It
is our hope that the outreach we provide to our youth today educates and
empowers them to become our future natural resource stewards.
Our annual operating budget is approaching a half million dollars and County
funding has enabled us to receive matching funds from private, State, and
Federal agencies. As gracious as past financial contributions to our County's
watershed partnerships have been, this is simply not enough.
Active
management needs to occur throughout all of our watersheds. In East Maui, we
are working in a 10,000 acre area while tens of thousands of acres are not being
actively managed and irreversibly degrading. The Mayor's budget for 2005
approaches $300 million but allocates less than 1 percent for work protecting the
native forest, our supplier of fresh water. A couple of million dollars, not a couple
of hundred thousand dollars needs to be spent per year for the next several
years to protect and preserve our watersheds. Otherwise we may be faced with
having to spend hundreds of millions of dollars in the future to accomplish this
surmountable task.
Now more than ever is the time for the County and State and landowners
affiliated with the watershed partnerships to fiscally demonstrate their
commitment to protecting this resource. I hope, during this coming year, that all
affiliated parties in Maui County's watershed partnerships take the time and meet
to seriously enter into discussions to fund in perpetuity the protection of our fresh
water supply. You may ask, how can you-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: --generate a couple of million dollars per year for the next several
years? I did a cursory review of the budget. Adding 50 cents to the cost of a
hotel room to fund watershed protection efforts would generate revenues
approaching $2 V2 million. This is the type of funding that is needed for our
watershed partnerships and the type of legislative initiatives that need to occur.
Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Alex. Questions for the testifier?
Seeing none ...
MR. MICHAILIDIS: I've got some brochures that I want to share with you all.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. Thank you. We'll have staff pass it out
and my apologies for my mispronunciation of your last name, Alex. Thank you.
Okay. Next to testify representing, speaking on behalf of MEO we have Julia
Rodrigues to be followed by Christopher Grasa.
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MS. J. RODRIGUES: Aloha. My name is Julia Rodrigues. I'm here on behalf of my
grandchildren and each and every one of the children that is with Maui Youth
Bank of MEO. When my son died, I received my grandchildren back home and it
was difficult for me, so with all the counseling and psychiatrists and things I
was ... the Youth Bank was recommended to me. So I look, I went to MEO and I
talked to Duke Sevilla there and my grandchildren was accepted there.
So I'm asking each and every one of you to please help funding, keep funding for
these children, because I've seen a tremendous improvement and not only for
my grandchildren but for the rest of the children that has been there. They have
worked a lot; they have gone to the different places, even to Kahoolawe. They
worked in the taro patches and things. So, please, I'm asking that you do this for
them, and I would like to recognize the Haliimaile, Haiku and Paia senior citizens
who are here to represent MEO who will not speak tonight. Thank you very
much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Rodrigues. Go ahead.
MS. A. RODRIGUES: Aloha. My name is Anuhea and I attend King Kekaulike. I am a
member of MEO's Youth Bank program. Thank you for your support to keep this
program running. I enjoy the program because it gives me skills that are
important for me to know. Last week, D. Mele Carroll came to our program to
teach us what it is like to be a Council Member and how to testify, so I am using
my... so here I am using my skills. The Youth Bank is a great program to be a
part of and it keeps me out of trouble. Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Anuhea. Anuhea, can you sign up at the
desk if you haven't already for testimony. Thank you. Next we have Christopher
Grasa to be followed by Gregg Blue.
MR. GRASA: Aloha. Good evening. My name is Christopher Grasa. I'm a field
technician for the East Maui Watershed and I'm not gonna load my musket
tonight, but I'm just here to remind everybody how important the watershed is or
else the lua in the $60 million house won't work. And, yeah, we just need our
watershed, very important, and our job has just begun. So we look to your
continued support. Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chris. Questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, next we have Gregg Blue representing the Haiku Community
Association followed by Carol Matasci.
MR. BLUE: Good evening and I want to acknowledge all the Council Members for
flowing with the traffic, coming out here tonight. Haiku without water meters for
the past few years is the second fastest growing community on MauL I don't
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know how, but it is. We've heard from all these deserving social groups tonight
and a lot of them are from Haiku. What the community association is striving to
do is retain our rural character. If you drive into Haiku right now coming around
Maliko, it doesn't look very rural. We are losing it, seriously, okay. I don't usually
read letters but I'm going to read this. We've worked on it. I'm going to get
through it. I am the President of the Haiku Community Association at this time.
On behalf of the community of Haiku and our association, we're appealing for
your support for a program which is going to help us in preserving the integrity,
diversity, economic stability and the rural charm of our community. As you're
aware, Haiku is only outpaced by Kihei in its rapid expansion and population
growth. This has caught our community off-guard and we, a lot of members of
the community feel like they're on a runaway train that's just totally out of control.
We've had a lot of recent gatherings and surveys that we've sponsored, and
what we're hearing from people is that they want to preserve the qualities of
Haiku that are precious to the hearts of our community. We have to protect the
ocean and mountain views, the rural qualities, the open spaces. We're going to
encourage the spirit of ohana and kokua that provide a safe and nurturing
environment for our keiki and the kupuna. We also want to maintain a viable
local business environment. We have to uphold the integrity and diversity that
makes up the rich fabric of Haiku. The overwhelming question is how to
accomplish these goals.
This year we connected with the Wailuku Main Street Association/the Tri-Isle
Main Street Resource Center, Jocelyn Perreira. We have now initiated the
process of becoming a local main street community, and I'm sure all of you know
what that is. Our initial meetings with Jocelyn's staff has been insightful and
encouraging. We've already approached the community. We have people in
place right now: volunteers, some older folks, some younger folks, racially
diverse, ready to go to work and do whatever it takes. The experience of
Jocelyn's team in supporting the main street communities in Maui has given them
the expertise vital to guide us in forming a community strategic plan. We-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. BLUE: --need to change tracks from being reactionary captives on a runaway
growth train to being proactive leaders and balancing the preservation and
economic revitalization of Haiku.
The HCA--that's the Haiku Community Association--understands there's no
magic bullets or quick fixes for the current challenges that face our community.
We want to work hand in hand with Jocelyn's group and join in this process.
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The Main Street program, as advocated by the dedicated staff, brings together a
broad and diverse base of grassroots community volunteers. Private sector
contributions and donated professional services will be included to make our
goals a reality for the present and future of the Haiku community_ I want to say,
mahalo for your past support of the strategic plans. It's valuable information; it's
passed on to you folks to help you in your deciSions; and it's-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. BLUE: --an extremely cost-effective program. So again, we're going to go down
this road and we're asking you for your support in the strategic plan initiative.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Gregg. Questions for the
testifier? Gregg, please feel free if you want to forward that, copies of those
letters to the Committee, that would be helpful. We do have it? Okay. Thank
you, Gregg. Next to testify we have Carol Matasci to be followed by Katherine
Lui.
MS. MATASCI: Hi. My name is Carol Matasci, I am a Junior at Baldwin High School. I
am here to testify on behalf of the Focus Maui Nui Program. I partiCipated in a
session at my church with a group of other teens, and it was, I think it was a very
worthwhile experience. I was able to see the different opinions of my peers and
how, what we agreed on, the different things that were important for Maui. And I
think it's important to go to the places that are convenient for people, because a
lot of people may not feel comfortable coming to a meeting like this and talking in
front of a large group. But they were more comfortable in their homes or in their
churches and places that were more familiar and smaller groups and able to
share their feelings and their priorities for Maui, also. Over 165 forums and
almost 1,700 residents were reached and I think that's something, that's a good
accomplishment. I'd like to thank you for supporting the program and for your
continued support.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Carol, and thank you for your
involvement representing the youth segment on the Focus Maui NuL Next we
have Katherine Lui, who will be speaking on behalf of the East Maui Watershed
Partnership to be followed by Claire Sheehan.
MS. LUI: Hi. Can you guys here me? My name is Kat Lui and I'm representing the
East Maui Watershed Partnership; I'm in charge of their public relations and
outreach program. At the last meeting in Kula that I attended, I mentioned that,
since the beginning of the program nine months ago, we have fostered
relationships and reached over 500 members of the community, that's over
500 keiki, teachers, teenagers, senior citizens, people of all different ages and all
over the island.
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To give you an idea, I go into classrooms a lot and I mean I don't, I don't just talk
to them. I really want to encourage the kids to learn interactively. I bring a
watershed model into the class; they build and create their own watersheds; and
they learn that they are a part of the watershed along with the native plants and
animals and the water that the watershed provides us. They learn that, that it is
their kuleana and their responsibility to take care of the watershed.
Sometimes the best classroom is in nature itself. One of the best hikes in the
rain forest I've ever led was with the Kaunoa Senior Citizens Group, and usually
when I have high school kids sometimes it's hard to get them to pay attention to
the things I'm teaching them. But these senior citizens, they were asking me
questions lett and right, you know. What's this bush? What's this tree? What
was that I heard? Where does the water come from? What are fences for?
What do you do? And I really think that these senior citizens are kind of the
model for community members, because they're actively participating in their
community. And I just wanted to thank the Council for giving us the funding to
allow us to do the public relations outreach that we do. And I also encourage
you, if you haven't already, to take the opportunity, call us anytime and schedule
a hike for you and your friends. We'll take you up there and show you around, so
mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Kat. Committees Members,
questions for the testifier? Seeing none, next we have Claire Sheehan, who will
be speaking for the Maui Humane Society to be followed by Michae! Jensen if
he's still here.
MS. SHEEHAN: Hi. Good evening, Council and also members of the Paia and Haiku
community. I am a resident of Paia and so I really wanted to take this
opportunity. The Council has heard representatives of the Maui Humane Society
speak, so what I like about these community meetings is we also get a chance to
talk to you guys so you understand a little bit more about our organization.
We are a non-profit organization that partnerships with the County of Maui to
provide the animal management program for the County of Maui. And we, when
we submitted our budget, were looking for a minimum increase to our budget to
deal with salary issues. Currently our animal control officers earn a starting pay
of $10.60 an hour. These folks deal with the same criminal element that our
Police Department deals with. And also that means the same increased violence
that you're seeing with the Police Department happens with our animal control
officers. Two of our officers were assaulted this year alone. The kind of cases
they deal with: we dealt with 900 ... , 9,600 cases of relating to animal control
issues; 86 were dogs bites and 55 of those were to humans; 989 of these cases
were cruelty neglect that often end up in court. Our people need to be
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well-educated, which they are and why they work for 10.60 an hour, I bless them
every night for this.
They take these cases all the way to court. They don't go through taking the
initial report and passing it off to detectives. They have the training to bring a
case to court. They also have issued 598 citations. Citations are something that
the police do; so do these guys. We're looking for help for them; they're a
wonderful group of folks. We, in our budget when you look at it there shows a
$10,000 increase from last year, but our original budget also talked about a need
for a $25,000 truck. So if we were to follow the vehicle replacement policies by
the County, we're going to be seeing another $15,000 deficit to our current
budget.
It's estimated that 75 households ... 75 percent of the households on Maui have
used our services. We are a community service-based organization, I know, and
we cherish the idea of us being an animal friendly organization. That's what we
are but we're also very much people orientated, and there's benefits to
partnering, partnership with the Maui Humane Society. That includes sharing our
operating expenses relating to the facility and the day-to-day operations. As a
non-profit we can deal with private funding and grants to help do improvements
for a facility that we both share. And let's face it, let's not forget about that all
important evil, liability. We carry our own insurance. I'm certain you guys don't
want to even know what that could do to your situation. So what we'd like to do
is continue to be a community service organization, but if we cannot do it
effectively we wonder, why do it at all?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MS. SHEEHAN: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Claire. Questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Michael Jensen next to testify. Did Michael leave? Okay. We
have Debra Schonewill from the Paia Main Street Association to be followed by
Teya Penniman.
MS. SCHONEWILL: Hi. I'm Debra Schonewill with the Paia Main Street Association,
and basically I'll try to make it short for you all. I really appreciate you being here
and coming out to talk with the community. We just feel to support the Paia Main
Street in general and the funding for all the small towns to protect our historical
interests on Maui. Paia is near to our hearts locally, so we have a lot of issues.
The north shore, we feel, is very much on the cusp of big changes coming up, so
we certainly need an avenue. I've submitted a letter that you can review, but we
really enjoy the formal avenue that we have as volunteers as in Jocelyn and her
staff being able to focus and be our connector to you all and the Planning
Department, because it helps us focus. We all have our own businesses or work
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somewhere else or this or that, so it's a very valuable service. I feel it's
wonderful for the community to have it. I'm glad it's here and we will make our
best efforts to help in the project reviews early on and not be people that are
what I'd call necessarily obstructionists.
I think if you start planning with the community from the beginning of projects,
then there really is no such thing as an obstructionist 'cause hopefully, hopefully
it involves what they need as well as whatever it is: a developer, a road, you
know, a park. It doesn't really matter. It all effects the people, so and that's the
way we look at it and we'd like to be involved as early as possible, so that helps
us do that. Some of the capital improvement requests we've, you know, Paia
gets a very small slice of the pie when you look in your budget. Please look at it.
Lanai is really small; I feel bad for them as well. But Paia, our community center
has not been upgraded; you can just look around and compare to the other
towns. And certainly we are due somewhere in the next 10 years--I would
hope--for some upgrades in our parks and facilities.
Thank you for the things going on at Hookipa. It's wonderful to see a lifeguard
stand attempting to rise out of the ground. And we're ... the issues here are
mainly, obviously traffic--we've, I don't want to beat a dead horse tonight with
that--and the big major bypass; safety on our sidewalks, in our parks; drug
issues; the youth centers to support. There's a lot of community issues that we
want to avidly support in addition to the parks and bike paths and that, the fun
stuff, so I appreciate it. I also appreciate all the youth programs that you have
mentioned. On a personal note, if 1-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. SCHONEWILL: --can mention to support Big Brothers, Big Sisters. I've been a big
sister now for nine years. He was also in that, I forgot the name of it, the recent
woman that talked about going to, to the outer islands. What was the name of
that program? Keaka(?), my little, was a participant in that and it's just awesome.
It's made a big difference in his life as well as Big Brothers, Big Sisters so, and in
my life. So, I appreciate that and that's all for now.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Debbie. Questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, we have Teya Penniman to testify and after Teya concludes her testimony,
we're going to take a brief recess. Thank you.
MS. PENNIMAN: Okay. Thank you. Aloha, Chairman Hokama and Council Members.
My name is Teya Penniman; I'm the manager of the Maui Invasive Species
Committee. I'd like to lend our voice to support the request of the East Maui
Watershed Partnership for continued funding for the watershed partnerships. It's
truly a collaborative effort with the watershed partnerships to protect Maui
County, Maui County's unique and vulnerable eco-systems.
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I also want to thank you for your vision and past support for the Maui Invasive
Species Committee and our efforts to control and prevent the threats from
invasive species impacting Maui. Maui County has truly been a leader among
the counties of Hawaii not only for recognizing the importance of addressing
invasive alien species, but also for being willing to direct the needed resources to
that issue. We ask that you continue your support of the work of the Maui
Invasive Species Committee. The proposed funding that's in the budget this year
will help ensure our continued progress addressing the most threatening species.
Specifically, there is identified funding for the control of invasive species under
the Department of Water Supply budget, and there's also funding that is
generally earmarked for environmental protection as part of the grants under the
Office of Economic Development. I would ask this year that you specifically
designate MISC, the Maui Invasive Species Committee and the Tri-Isle RC&D as
the recipient of the funds for environmental protection. This past year it was
intended to go to address invasive species, and I believe that is the
understanding also for the Office of Economic Development. But we did have a
situation where part way through the year after we expected that funding it was
pulled back to retain for possible environmental emergencies. As it turned out,
that money did come back to us, but having it specifically identified would help us
ensure our continuity and our planning.
I would note that the State of Hawaii appears to finally be taking steps this year,
responsibility for controlling invasive species and not only relying on the
generosity of the counties in recognizing that responsibility. There is currently a
bill before the Legislature that would significantly increase support for efforts to
control invasive species; however, as you know, there is no guarantee that that
bill will be passed or that it will be passed at its current requested funding level.
I would like to recognize the leadership of Councilmember Bob Carroll in trying to
wrest some dollars from the State to address this issue and in trying to put
forward some legislation to specifically address the koki frog issue on Maui
County. And in doing so, I would also like for you to seriously consider adding an
additional one-year increase of $100,000 to address that issue on Maui County.
For one year, with that amount of funding we could staff two full-time people and
an outreach person-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. PENNIMAN: --to work with nurseries, with hotels, with condominium owners to
really get this problem under control. I would not make that kind of a statement
because I'm in the business where we avoid the "E" word, the eradication word,
because we know it's a long-term problem and you have to put resources at it for
quite awhile with species that tend to continue coming back. But I think with that
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one-year funding, we really could make a significant dent in the problem, and I
know you're all familiar with the, with the problems associated with koki frogs. So
again, thank you very much for your, your dedication and the long hours I know
you're putting in on a lot of issues, and, and thank you for your continued
support.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Teya. Questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. At this time, I'd like to give you all an opportunity to
stretch and relieve yourself if necessary and mingle with the Members. So let's
go ahead and take a break and reconvene at 7:35 and we'll start off with Elliott
Krash who will be our first testifier after the break.
Meeting in recess .
. . . (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

7:28 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:37 p.m.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
.. .(gaveJ). . .
Budget and Finance hearing for
March 30th is now back in session. Thank you very much, members of the
general public, for that break. Before we begin with our first testifier, we'd, I'd like
to give you a little public service announcement. The Budget and Finance
Committee will be out in Hana tomorrow and out in Kihei on Thursday. So if you
have more to say to the Committee Members, you can come out to those areas
as well as to the Budget and Finance meetings that take place at the Council
Chambers. First to testify we have Elliott Krash of the Kula Community
Association to be followed by Calvin Shibuya.
MS. KRASH: Good evening, Council Chair Kane and Budget Chair Hokama and
Council Members. My name is Elliott Krash and I'm speaking tonight for the Kula
Community Association. Last night, I mean, last week at your hearing in Kula
you heard testimony from Dick Mayer and Karolyn Mossman on a variety of other
issues that are important to Kula residents.
Tonight, I'm going to focus only on water, because as you know water has been
a long-standing priority and concern, continuing concern of our community. If
you'll look at the handout that I gave you, the blue pages highlight some of the
issues related to water that I want to cover, and also included are excerpts from
the Upcountry Community Plan that was prepared in the mid '90s and our Kula
Community Association policy and position statements on water. And when you
have a chance to review that, you'll notice that the same items are on all three of
those documents. Now that's not to say that we haven't made progress since the
mid '90s when the Upcountry Community Plan was developed. We have. We've
made a lot of progress; we have a lot of projects ongoing now, and in fact I'd like
to start with the notes on Page 2 of the blue testimony sheet, the mahalos, a few
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of the things that, that are underway now, that, that are important to our
community.
One of the items that somehow got left off that list is the ag water, and you all
have been very helpful in securing State and Federal funding for our ag water
line. As you know, the upper Kula line is moving, just gotten clearance, I believe,
from the ranch so that it will progress past the upper Kimo where it is now. And
then there's also a study going on for a lower Kula ag line. So you've been
helpful in getting that going and that's been in the works since the mid '80s, I
believe. You've also helped us in getting the Pookela Well Project started;
County money has gotten that going. The meter issuance rules have been
drafted and/or have been finalized and are in effect. Chemical additives is one of
the issues: the itch, the Upcountry itch that you all have heard so much about
and that you have helped us with in many ways. And the Department staff also
has been very helpful and you all have been especially effective in, of course, in
getting that recent grant for 500,000.
So those are some of the things that, that are in the works and we ... but we still
need to work on them. And now I'd like to turn to the items on the front page and
hit just a few of them, the priorities for our community. As you know, water for
agriculture, water for Hawaiian Home Lands are the priorities for our community.
That's in the Upcountry plan, also in our Kula Community Association policy
statements, and-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. KRASH: --what we feel is important that we must have allocation plans to set aside
buckets of water for agriculture for, for Home Lands and we need to look at those
plans from time to time. We do have a plan for allocating Hawaiian Home Lands
but it may need updating. Dropping down the list there: CIP funding. We need
to increase that. We're 2 million this year--I think it's in the budget--and as you
know to upgrade our infrastructure will take about 10 million a year, recent
studies have shown. So, that's an area we need to look at, and related to that is
the need to look creatively at other funding sources: grants, etcetera besides the
bonds and the other funds that we have. The meter wait list: the main point I
want to make there is that, yes, we need to move people off that list, find water
for them as soon as possible, but as we do, we need to be sure that we have-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. KRASH: --water allocated for drought.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Elliott, can you conclude in the next-MS. KRASH: Yes, five--
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --thirty seconds?
MS. KRASH: --okay. Thirty seconds. Related to finding water, to get people off the
wait list--as you know, there have been 900 people on it; we've moved 100 and
some off--reservoirs and wells. But we need to look carefully at the relative
costs, a lot more up-front for reservoirs, but what does it cost to pump water up
from an 1,800 foot deep well? I lived in an area where we have to pump our
water uphill, four times the cost of the water for everyone else. So we need to
look carefully at those costs and those solutions. These are outlined as talking
points for you and thank you for your help and we look forward to continuing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Ms. Krash. Committee
Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, and thank you for this
letter and your appreciation. Next to testify we have Calvin Shibuya representing
the Wailuku Main StreetiTri-lsle Resource Center to be followed by Kim Harter.
MR. SHIBUYA: Mr. Chairman, Council Members, good evening. I'm Calvin Shibuya
and I'm here on behalf of the Wailuku Main StreetlTri-lsle Resource Center and I
appreciate your time and your dedication. You know, I thought it was going to be
a whiz tonight, everybody be at home watching American Idol. But here we are,
1 hour 40, yeah, an hour 40 has gone by already and here I am. Anyway, I am
here to ask for your continued support of the Tri-Isle Resource Center, and as
you know, they're responsible for the coordinating, training and overseeing of all
the Main Street organizations here on, in Maui County.
As you know, it's small towns such at Paia, Makawao, Kaunakakai, they're
treasures and they need to be protected and they need to be preserved as a
reminder to our future generations that these small towns were the foundations of
our socio-economic livelihood. Please also consider funding a little bit for the
improvement of the quality of life issues and for the citizens of Makawao. You
have in the past spent millions of dollars purchasing oceanfront properties for
parks and recreation. And I ask you to spend just a little bit for the protection and
preserving of greenbelts in Upcountry, so we can have our town center and we
can have our police station and we can have a public restroom right in the town
of Makawao. Again, thank you very much for giving me the opportunity to speak
to you and again ask for your continued support of the Wailuku Main
StreetlTri-lsle Resource Center. Thank you.
Committee Members,
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Mr. Shibuya.
questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Calvin, I appreciate you
being here because I know you're a big American Idol fan too, so. We have a
pretty good turnout considering we have American Idol and Camile Velasco from
Haiku who's on TV tonight. Next to testify we have Kim Harter to be followed by
Rusty Hughes.
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MS. HARTER: Good evening. Aloha, Council Members, and I'm glad that you're here
tonight to hear testimony from our community of Haiku. I'm a resident of Haiku
and I have a young child at Haiku School, and I'm here to ask that you support
the budget for. .. increase for parks and recreation. I am a parent representative
of the SCBM Council at Haiku School as well as involved in the Playground
Committee, and the Playground Committee has been working for over a year
now with the Haiku community parent volunteers, teachers, and administration;
the Department of Education; the Haiku community organizations; Boys and Girls
Club and the Haiku Community Association to develop future improvements and
as well as address the many safety and maintenance needs of the Haiku School
park and the community park. The community and Haiku park are used both by
Haiku School and the broader community of Haiku. And I am here tonight to
testify on my own behalf that you support the increase in the County's
Department of Park and Recreation budget in order to address the, particularly,
the maintenance needs and to make our park, parks safe for our children. And
we have been working since for a year now to, towards making improvements
and addressing some of these safety issues, and we really need some funds to
help make that happen more quickly. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Kim. Members, questions for the
testifier? Kim, can I ask you just one quick question regarding the Kalakapua
playground. About roughly can you give us a ballpark figure what type of, how
much funds you are interested in?
MS. HARTER: Yeah. This is ... I'm speaking about the Haiku School playground.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, not the Kala-MS. HARTER: Yeah, this is a different-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for the clarification.
MS. HARTER: --this is the ... owned by the County. The park is owned by the County
and the Haiku School partners with the County to make improvements and take
care of it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Next to testify we have Rusty
Hughes speaking for Trex Enterprises to be followed by Marian Zajac.
MR. HUGHES: Hello. My name is Rusty Hughes; I'm the manager for the Maui Space
Surveillance System Observatory Division of Trex Enterprises Corporation atop
Haleakala.
Trex Enterprises is committed to developing leading-edge
technologies with the focus on advancements that bring about major leap forward
to meet the market's needs. Trex develops systems in such arenas as sensors
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and imaging; composite materials; ground-based lasers; and adaptive optics.
Trex Hawaii's operations include facilities on both Maui and Kauai.
The division of Trex that I work with is currently teamed up with Boeing LTS to
maintain, operate and upgrade the Air Force Maui Optical and Supercomputing
facilities. Trex is specifically responsible for the $55 million adaptive optic system
installed at the 10,000 foot AOS telescope facility along with the acquisition
telescopes at MSSS. Trex recruits abroad and hire and tries to hire locally to fill
open employment positions. For example, Carl Nakamoto recently joined our
Trex MSSS team. Carl holds an electrical engineering degree from UH Manoa.
Last summer, Trex participated in the MEDB's Maui Akamai internship by
mentoring a Maui Community College student for six weeks.
I also had the opportunity to work with several of the interns mentored by Boeing
LTS at the observatory. Our intern's name was Reggie Morales(?) ... (CHANGE
TAPE) ... an associates degree in computer science from MCC. In the project
that Reggie worked on at MSSS was implementing a subsystem upgrade to
several Aerotech U100 motion controllers for externalizing the EPROM batteries
for simplified voltage monitoring, battery replacement and preventive
maintenance. During this hardware modification, Reggie was exposed to the
engineering standards and processes involved in high technology. The MEDB,
Maui Akamai Internship Program provided Reggie the opportunity to work in a
locally-based high tech industry and get a good feel for contributing in this type of
environment. Reggie was able to learn about local long-term employment
opportunities that he, he could seek following the completion of his education.
Reggie left the experience with optimism and a strong belief in a good education.
Trex directly benefited as well by having the privilege of Reggie working with us,
thus assisting in the project's efficiency I would like to thank the MEDB for
arranging National Science Foundation funding through the Center for Adaptive
Optics in Santa Cruz to cover the intern's salary while working with us on, on
Maui. I would like to recommend that the Council support the MEDB's budget
request as their efforts help diversify Maui's economy and promote the building of
a trained resident workforce by developing partnerships between education and
industry. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify we have Nathan Barnes for the
Maui High Performance Computing Center to be followed by Melanie King. Oh
I'm sorry, excuse me, I apologize, I'm getting ahead of myself. I apologize,
Marian Zajac to be followed by Nathan Barnes. There we go.
MS. ZAJAC: It's okay. I don't like speaking so much anyway. My name is Marian
Zajac. There's not so many people here. We probably don't need this. Okay.
My name is Marian Zajac and I'm currently Vice President of the Haiku
Community Association; I'm also Chair of the newly formed Haiku Main Street
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Committee, and am also involved in another new project with the Haiku Living
Legacy project that's looking at putting together a Haiku reunion in an upcoming
year in conjunction with the centennial of Haiku School.
Tonight, I'm really here on behalf of my family, my son and his future in Haiku.
And that's what's very important to me, to all the other families that I know in
Haiku with, with children. I've had the good fortune of having as friends many of
the old-timers in Haiku and been lucky that they've been willing to share their
stories of Haiku in its past days and also their vision for what they see for its
future. It warms my heart when I see their eyes light up when they talk about
their passion for Haiku and aU the things that are special and dear to Haiku. It's
the same way I feel when I get the, have the luxury of working on our small farm
and not working all the time. And also when I take part in events like our
Hoolaulea and Mahalo Day and the other events that bring our community
together.
Our Haiku Community Association Board President spoke at great lengths earlier
about our desire to enlist the help of the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center to
guide us towards a vision and a plan for the future of Haiku that ensures we
balance both the rapid growth with preserving the things that are dear to all of our
community. I'm appealing to you to support this project and this endeavor with
your. .. and to thank you as well for your past support for the Tri-Isle Main Street
Association Resource Center, and I hope that you continue to support this so that
Haiku can reach out to the diverse membership of its community, make sure that
we include everyone. It's a challenge that we're faced with constantly as
community association board members is, how do you, how do you reach out
and say we truly represent our community instead of, you know, the small group
that tends to serve on boards? And we tend to be like-minded and come from
similar backgrounds, and we're constantly frustrated in our efforts to bring the
community out. And I see this process as a way to reach out and truly include
the community so that our goals and our vision for Haiku are something that we
can all be proud of and something that we can all look forward to. Thank you for
your time. And I know this is late for you guys, so thank you for hanging in there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Marian. Questions for the testifier? You
know, Marian, for somebody that doesn't like to speak, you did a fantastic job.
Next we have Nathan Barnes from the Maui High Performance Computing
Center to be followed by Melanie King.
MR. BARNES: Hi. My name is Nathan Barnes and I've been born and raised here on
Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Excuse me, can you hold up? Staff, could you assist
Nathan in bringing that microphone up a little higher? We want to get you to
sound real good on our tape. There we go.
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Note:

Pause.

MR. BARNES: Sorry, I'm so tall.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Nothing like high tech, huh, Nathan, for a computing
center. Okay. Let's, let's restart Mr. Barnes' time again. . .. Yeah, it needs a
little tightening, I think, on that. Okay. Go ahead again. You can start over
again, Nathan.
MR. BARNES: Hi, my name is Nathan Barnes and I was born and raised here on MauL
I started my education at Haiku Elementary and went on to Kalama Intermediate
and finished in Maui High School. I went to MCC for a couple years off and on,
and I had decided to move to San Diego to get serious about my education. I
just graduated this August with a bachelors in computer science. And during my
three and a half years in San Diego, I was slowly coming to accept that I would
have to probably live on the mainland in order to pursue a career in computer
science. And so it was a bummer because, you know, my heart and all my family
and friends are here on MauL And so the Maui Economic Development Board
helped me to apply at some of the companies here in, in the Research and
Technology Center in Kihei. And I was able to get hired at the Maui High
Performance Computing Center, and its been a dream come true to be able to
pursue a career in computer science as well as live, you know, where my heart is
and where my home is. And I just want to, to say that to continue to fund the
Maui Economic Board, Development Board so that you can bring back kamaaina
like myself and to, to help flourish in a different industry besides tourism and stuff
like that. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Nathan. Committee Members,
questions? Seeing none, thank you. Good to see you home, Nathan. Next we
have Melanie King representing Bahama Mama to be followed by Nancy
Chaplick.
MS. KING: Is this okay? Okay. My name is Melanie King and I'm here actually to
support the MEO Microenterprise Program. I was born and raised and now live
in Kihei. I am a mother of five children; I own and operate a retail store called
Bahama Mama here in Paia along with my sister, Natasha Smith. We provide
unique and fashionable apparel for the fashion-conscious woman. Owning a
clothing retail business has been a childhood dream of my sister and I. When we
decided to turn that dream into reality, funding sources were dismal for
individuals like ourselves who lacked the necessary capital and business
experience. The MEO Microenterprise Program has assisted in securing a
startup loan but, most importantly, they provided us with the encouragement and
knowledge that we needed to make the right decisions for the success of our
business.
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I am also a board member as well as an officer with the Kihei Youth Center. So
overall MEO has provided bus transportation for our youth and other numerous
services in the assets of the community. So their support and contribution to the
community is indispensable and this is why I strongly recommend that funding be
proposed in the Mayor's budget for MEO Microenterprise to continue. I thank
you, Council Members, for the opportunity to speak to you tonight, and also I
thank you for your support in helping me grow in my business. And also I'd like
to say on supporting the Women Helping Women I was once a client there, so I
am hopefully one of the many testimonials that can show how these
organizations and non-profits have offered services and changed lives in the
community. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Melanie. Committee Members, any
questions? Seeing none, thank you. Next we have Nancy Chaplick from the
Maui Food Bank to be followed by Charlie Crandall.
MS. CHAPLlCK: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Nancy Chaplick; I am
the board secretary for the Maui Food Bank, and I'm here tonight to ask you for
your continued support of the line item appropriating $150,000 for the Maui Food
Bank. The Maui Food Bank provides a vital link between those that have food
and those that need food. We're the only non-profit agency in the County that
collects, warehouses and distributes mass quantities of food to its gO-pius
member agencies Countywide including Hana, Lanai and Molokai.
When I was first asked to be a board member by our Executive Director Deb
Johnson, she wanted to share all kinds of statistics with me. Well, I'm kind of a
non-statistics girl; I really wanted to know the human interest side of what the
Maui Food Bank did and she shared stories with me of children at the Food Bank
helping children in need, and I remember sitting in her office--and I'm even
tonight getting chicken skin and I don't think it's 'cause I'm freezing--I just
remembered back of the stories that she told me. So, the one statistic I want to
share with you tonight is that almost half of the people that the Maui Food Bank
helps are children, and it was really the stories of children helping the children
that inspired me to be a board member. The Maui Food Bank believes that no
one in Maui County should go to bed hungry or have to make tough choices
between paying your rent or buying food. So I ask you tonight for your support in
keeping the Maui Food Bank in the budget. Thank you and good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Okay.
Thank you.
Committee Members, any
questions? Seeing none, thank you. Next we have Charlie Crandall from the
MEDB and prior to Charlie speaking, if there's anyone else that would like to
testify as one of your last opportunities, to sign up in the front. Okay, Charlie,
and Mat Daniells will be following Charlie.
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MR. CRANDALL: Good evening. I'm Charlie Crandall from High Chiva Systems and
I'm not here to ask you for any money, but I am here to testify on behalf of the
Maui Economic Development Board. lawn a small software company in
Makawao and I relocated here about a year ago from New Zealand, and I
actually met these people when I was on the mainland drumming up business for
my software company at a conference. I ran into them and it was kind of funny
that, you know, I had to go to the mainland to meet someone from Maui in order
to do business with people on Maui, and it was actually quite nice. And over the
past six, seven months, they've helped me in a few ways which has been nice.
I would like to not have to buy all of my, my services from the mainland or from
Japan and that's what I've been doing. And for instance, we, we sell CDs in a
catalog on the mainland and they're sold all over the world. We have customers
in, in South America and in New Zealand and South Africa and Europe, and we
get all of our periodicals and everything printed and burned on the mainland. I
would like to do all of that here. And I haven't been able to do that yet, but I have
been able to network with people, like-minded people here on MauL I've needed
help with marketing and they were able to put me in contact with some people.
We've needed help with our website. We want to ... we do sell our software on
our website, but, you know, it needs to be more professional and I didn't really
know that this, this existed on Maui, but there are talented people here. And the
MEDB has put me in contact with some and it's ... I've benefited. So I just
wanted to share that with you and I know that you do fund them and you've
funded them for, for many years, and I also do know that, that helps them get
funding from other sources. So, once again I'd just like to thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Charlie. Questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, next to testify we have Matt Daniells to be followed by
Karen Green.
MR. DANIELLS: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Matt Daniells; of
course, I'm with the Haiku Community Association. I'm on the Board of
Directors, and I'm here to ask for your support in us becoming aligned with the
Main Street Association to create a strategic plan for, for Haiku. I've seen the
effectiveness of the strategic plan, and I've seen the effectiveness of the Main
Street Association when Makawao was doing their meetings about the Barto
development and how they, how they dealt with it. And basically I think the
alliance between us and the Main Street Association will help Haiku to remain
Haiku.
You might say I'm here representing small business in Haiku. My wife owns
Hanzawa Store and it stands to benefit not only from growth but from controlled
growth, and I think we all do as residents of Haiku. And we ask for your support
and as a board member I ask for your support. By the way, I wanted to say
thank you for, to Mr. Molina, for responding to calls about the road blockage on
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Kaupakalua and if anyone else has anything they can do to help us on that
matter, to keep it, keep the fire going and get it done quickly. Please make
whatever calls you can because that's an extreme inconvenience for not only the
residents but our store. It's effecting our business, so thank you very much for
listening.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Matt. Any questions for
Mr. Daniells? Seeing none, we have Karen Green and she's our last testifier and
folks, this is your last opportunity. I know not too many of you are left. There
may be a few of you that, other than the County personnel, who'd like to testify.
So if you want, you have one last opportunity. Go ahead, Karen.
MS. GREEN: Hi. My name is Karen Green and I'm here for my son Jack, who's three.
I'm nervous, sorry. But it's just, being a working mother it's very comforting for
me to know that my son is well taken care of. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's okay, take your time.
MS. GREEN: And so your money is being put to good use and he entered Haiku Head
Start because he has a speech problem and he's been there since September.
And now he's coming along very well and he can put three words together. So I
just want to say, thank you. I'm very embarrassed. Thank you .
• . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY• •.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Don't be embarrassed, Karen. Thank you. Thank you.
Okay, folks, I want to thank you all for coming out tonight and sharing with the
Committee your concerns, and at this time I'd like to yield the microphone to the
Budget Chairman, Mr. Hokama.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For those of you that stayed till the end, thank you very much. Your
comments are much appreciated, and we will continue to do our best efforts to
address the concerns of the Haiku, Paia, Makawao communities. So, thank you
very much, ladies and gentlemen, and we will adjourn this meeting .
. . . (gavel) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: JAJ; absent: WKN)
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8:08 p.m.
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